

REGULAR GOVERNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES

Wednesday, October 16, 2024 In Person Meeting

Members Present:

At Roll Call: Michael Brown, Marbeya Ellis, Ruth Forney, Charla Griffith, Gerald Hase, Anthony Lofton, Seema Mirza, Don O' Conner, Annabelle Sanchez, Tracee Stacy, Sandra Whaley, Brandon Wirth.

Members Absent: Etta Cooper, Deborah Hillman, Rovina Jones.

Staff Present:

Cynthia Coutee, Dona Weissenfels, Dr. Bela Matyas, Dr. Reza Rajabian, Gerald Huber, Han Yoon, Kelly Welsh, Krista McBride, Natasha Hamilton, Nina Delmendo, Noelle Soto, Pierce Leavell, Rebecca Cronk, Roger Robinson, Valerie Flores, Whitney Hunter, Danielle Seguerre-Seymour, Katreena Dotson, Kathryn Power.

1) Call to Order – 12:01 PM

- a) Welcome
- b) Roll Call

2) Approval of the October 16, 2024 Agenda

Discussion:	None.
-------------	-------

- Motion: To approve the October 16, 2024 Agenda.
- Motion by: Sandra Whaley and seconded by Don O' Conner.
- Ayes: Michael Brown, Marbeya Ellis, Ruth Forney, Charla Griffith, Gerald Hase, Anthony Lofton, Seema Mirza, Don O' Conner, Annabelle Sanchez, Tracee Stacy, Sandra Whaley, Brandon Wirth.

Nays: None.

Abstain: None.

Motion Carried.

3) Public Comment

Brandon Wirth announced that Gerald "Jerry" Huber, Director of Health & Social Services, would be retiring and that Jerry was attending his last Community Healthcare Board Meeting. Brandon and Tracee Stacy extended their gratitude and thanks to Jerry for his leadership and wished him well on his retirement. Jerry explained that the clinic functions have come a long way from when he started 10 years prior. He acknowledged his appreciation for the County staff and Board Members, thanking them for making it over many hurdles during his tenure.



Regular Calendar

4) Approval of Minutes

Approval of the September 18, 2024, draft Minutes.

- Discussion: Tracee Stacy initially made a motion to approve the Meeting Minutes but withdrew her motion because she was not present at the September 18, 2024, CHB Meeting. County Counsel, Kelly Welsh, agreed.
- Motion: To approve the September 18, 2024, draft Minutes.
- Motion by: Don O' Conner and seconded by Anthony Lofton.
- Ayes: Michael Brown, Ruth Forney, Charla Griffith, Gerald Hase, Anthony Lofton, Seema Mirza, Don O' Conner, Annabelle Sanchez, Brandon Wirth.
- Nays: None.

Abstain: Marbeya Ellis, Sandra Whaley, Tracee Stacy.

Motion Carried.

5) Clinic Operations Reports

- a) **Staffing Update** Natasha Hamilton (*Please reference the "FHS Staffing Update* October 16, 2024")
 - Natasha Hamilton reported that five (5) Medical Assistant candidates were in the Credentialing phase and anticipated a start date of October 28, 2024. She also mentioned that one (1) Physician Assistant was hired October 15, 2024, and another Physician Assistant was expected to start on October 28th.
 - There were no questions from the Board.
- b) **Credentialing Update** Desiree Bodiford (*Please reference the "FHS Credentialing, Provider* Enrollment and Sanctioning Screening Activities – Status Report – October 2024")
 - Dona Weissenfels stated that Desiree was not present, but reviewed the report submitted and explained that there were no exclusions or sanctions found.
 - Tracee Stacy mentioned that she collaborated with Touro on the Mobile Diabetes Education Center (MOBEC) program. She asked if there was an opportunity for screening providers that are providing services in areas such as senior centers and homeless shelters. Dona Weissenfels explained that Family Health Services (FHS) currently works with Touro University on various programs, like Diabetology led by Dr. Jay Shubrook and hisTeam. Dona explained that she would have to research the other outreach programs to get more information. Dr. Bela Matyas stated that MOBEC does not have a National Provider Identifier (NPI) number, so it poses an ownership dilemma. He did suggest that Dr. Shubrook could upload data into Epic.
- c) **HRSA Grant Update(s)** Noelle Soto (*Please reference the "Health Resources and Services* Administration (HRSA) Grant Updates – October 16, 2024")
 - Noelle Soto reported that FHS is prepping the Competing Continuation application ("base" grant) that provides health care for the homeless and community health care. She explained



that Phase 1 was submitted on October 15, 2024; Phase 2 due November 14, 2024. She explained that FHS is meeting with Fiscal and Programs on grant planning and resubmissions. Noncompeting Continuation (HIV/AIDS) grant submission deadline estimated as November 15, 2024. Documents for both grants will be presented later, for Board review and approval.

- There were no questions from the Board.
- d) **Grievances/Compliments** Rebecca Cronk (*Please reference the "Grievance Reports, April-December 2023 & January– September 2024" and "Grievance Category Definitions"*)
 - Rebecca Cronk reported that for the month of September, there were seven (7) grievances filed in the "Access to Care" category. She explained that the increase is likely due to the Epic transition, such as delays with adjusting to the new system.
 - Seema Mirza stated that the wait time in the clinic is more than ½ an hour. She asked how Epic will help. Natasha Hamilton assured the Board that the FHS Staff is progressing with learning and navigating the new system. She anticipated that by January 2025, the clinics should be more efficient with Epic.
- e) **H&SS Compliance** Krista McBride (*"FHS Compliance Incident Report Tracking, September 1-September 30, 2024"*)
 - Krista McBride was not present. Dr. Bela Matyas reported that during the Epic transition, one (1) printer was set up incorrectly, which resulted in eight (8) records being sent an unintended recipient. The error was identified, and the receiver shredded the documents immediately. The incident was filed with Compliance.
 - There were no questions from the Board.
- f) Finance & Revenue Cycle Management Nina Delmendo (Please reference the "Operations Report – Finance September 2024: "Solano County Expenditure and Revenue Report FHS – September 2024" and "Revenue Cycle Reports – September 2024")
 Finance Depart

Finance Report

- Nina Delmendo stated that the Operations Report for the end of September, will also be presented as an Action Item for the Board's review and approval.
- Nina reported that in the report, the only item that alerted her was the "Software & Maintenance or Support" category. The budget of \$690k would cover OCHIN and NextGen because there will be expected overlap until the conversion is complete from NextGen to Epic. Nina explained that the amount will be adjusted.
- Tracee Stacy mentioned that there wasn't a percentage in the "Contracts/Client Support" category. Nina explained that the total of 8% is from dental services and equipment from 2023. <u>Revenue Cycle Reports</u>

• Nina reported that due to the Epic transition, encounter data was not available. She will be working with Billing and the Revenue Cycle Team to extract the data and should have an update at the November 20, 2024, CHB Meeting.

- Brandon Wirth asked if the delay would cause logistical issues (revenue reporting, etc.). Nina explained that there is a period to bill without being penalized, so she expressed no concerns for the delay.
- Tracee Stacy inquired about the provider efficiency with notetaking. Dona Weissenfels clarified that FHS is in the process of getting equipment for electronic scribing.
- g) **Referrals Report** Cynthia Coutee (*Please reference the "Family Health Services Referrals Time Period September 2024"*)
 - Cynthia Coutee reported that for September, there were 557 referrals in NextGen and 156 referrals in Epic. 272 were Specialty referrals for Adult and Peds. As of October 16th, there were



407 active referrals, including several orders with no actual referral attached. FHS is working with Netravine Project Manager, Lindsey Fritsch, to assist with removing the duplicate referrals. The Referral Team was processing referrals, 14 days out. As of September 24th, 362 referrals were completed. Cynthia stated that she continues to meet weekly with the Referral Team to address and resolve any issues. She will also start meeting with the Clinic Registered Nurse Seniors, to update the Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) for referral processing in Epic.

- Tracee Stacy complimented the Referral Team for their milestone. She also asked if the process would cause displacement. Dr. Bela Matyas clarified that documentation will be different, but it won't affect staffing. Cynthia explained that there are three (3) Medical Assistants that are assigned to referrals and three (3) that assist but have other job assignments. Dona Weissenfels noted that the future goal is to bring in a Referrals Supervisor and to create a team that's dedicated solely to referrals. She explained that it's inefficient to have an MA work multiple assignments.
- h) **OCHIN EPIC Update(s)** Dona Weissenfels
 - Dona Weissenfels reported that FHS was in week 4 of OCHIN Epic implementation. The clinics were settling down, but staff were transitioning well. She praised Dr. Michele Leary, Natasha Hamilton, and Dr. Reza Rajabian, for their leadership, as well as making many workflow decisions and clinical efficacy of the new system. Dona stated that there were few problems to report. There were 40 open service tickets and will take several months to resolve, but the conversion has been successful overall. Dona explained that the new focus would be sustainability, monitoring, and streamlining. The current goal is to maximize schedules using scheduling templates with the new technology for Family Medicine, Peds and HIV. Appointments are still at a 50% capacity, to keep staff from being overwhelmed, but would be increasing the percentage gradually.
 - There were no questions from the Board, but applause was given.
- i) **QI Update** Han Yoon (Please reference the "Primary Care Provider Improvement Program (PCP QIP), Solano County, H&SS, FHS As of October 1, 2024" and "FHS Quality Assurance/Quality Improvement (QA/QI) Committee Meeting Minutes September 13, 2024")
 - Han Yoon stated that the Primary Care Provider Improvement Program (PCP QIP) will also be presented as an Action Item for the Board's review and approval.
 - Han discussed the "Controlling High Blood Pressure" measure. He explained that he compared years 2022, 2023, and 2024 for the Fairfield, Vallejo, and Vacaville clinics. Han reported that the Full Point Target for BP was 72.22%. During the reporting period, Fairfield's score was 35.33%, with a target of 117 patients; Vallejo was at 14.88%, with a target of 343 patients; and Vacaville at 33.63%, with a target of 88 patients. That data did not include the upload from October, so the numbers would increase on the next quarter report.
 - Han also stated that the Quality Team would be partnering with the Locum providers, in the last quarter (2024 calendar year), to work on the "Cervical Cancer Screening", "Controlling High Blood Pressure" and "Diabetes HbA1c Good Control" measures.
 - Tracee Stacy asked if any of the measures will be met before years end. Han confirmed that the "Blood Lead Screening" measure was met and that FHS is close to meeting other measures. Dona Weissenfels reminded the Board that the clinics' appointment capacity is only at 50%. Dr. Bela Matyas also mentioned that the timing of Electronic Health Records (EHR) implementation will make it difficult to meet all the measures but confirmed that a Locum provider will be working with FHS for several months, to perform the cervical cancer screening pap smears. Jerry Huber added that he meets with Partnership Healthplan of California (PHC) monthly. At the last



meeting, a PHC Rep acknowledged that FHS provides good quality of care and understood that the clinics were engrossed in the Epic transition. Jerry stated 10 years ago, Solano was the lowest County in California with well child check-ups and immunizations. And although progress had been made, there is a long way to go.

- Brandon Wirth expressed concern with the large drop from 2022 to present. Dona and Dr. Matyas explained that it's due to staffing and the change of EHR systems, clarifying that the number of patients seen decreased over a span of seven (7) months. Dr. Matyas mentioned that the number of FHS patients had since then grown, causing the measure target to increase. The change to Epic will help with tracking patients that need to be screened. He also stated that there will soon be two (2) more positions to add to the Quality Team and if FHS receives a grant, the clinic will operate on Saturday to increase the screening appointments.
- Katreena Dotson further explained the manual upload process with NextGen, as well as the plan for meeting the measures. With Epic, the upload will be automated and more streamlined.
- Kathryn Power, PHC representative, assured the Board that the well child measure is down across the board, explaining that all health centers are affected by staffing shortages.
- Tracee Stacy inquired about community outreach to meet the well child measure. Dr. Matyas explained that some measures that can't be done in-clinic and require another vendor (such as colon cancer screening, mammogram, etc.), making it more difficult to meet. Solano County rolled out the Kindergarten Roundup program, but staffing shortages limited services to only one (1) location. He also stated that not as many kids participate in the event.
- Michael Brown asked how the target numbers were determined. Kathryn Power confirmed that PHC establishes the goal based on the County population size, as well as guidance from National Committee for Quality Assurance (NCQA) and California Department of Health Care Services (DHCS).

j) **FHS Clinic Q-Matic Stats** — Noelle Soto – (*Please reference the "Clinic Metrics – Queue Management* (Q-Matic) Stats – October 16, 2024")

- Noelle Soto reported that September data was not available, but will be updated for the November 20, 2024, CHB Meeting.
- There were no questions from the Board.

6) CHB Follow-up to Clinic Quality and Operational Reports

Review, Follow-up & Action: CHB will provide feedback on reports, request additional information on quality and clinic operations reports & follow up on these requests.

- a) Finance Committee Budget Workshop Status Update Nina Delmendo
- Nina Delmendo explained that she was waiting for direction from the Board on when to schedule the workshop. Brandon Wirth confirmed that it will be discussed with the Executive Board.
- There were no questions from the Board.

7) HRSA Project Officer Report

- a) Health Center HRSA Project Officer Update Dona Weissenfels
 - i) Health Center Activities Internal and External Update Internal News:
 - Dona Weissenfels extended her appreciation and thanks to Jerry Huber for his support and leadership on the EHR project. Jerry confirmed that it was a lot of work and planning that went into the implementation. Dr. Bela Matyas reminded the Board that Congressman John Garamendi contributing \$1M to the project, and thanked Ruth Forney for her assistance.



- Dona informed the Board of two (2) funding projects. Equity and Practice Transformation (EPT) payments program and a Saturday clinic grant.
- The EPT grant would have its first set of deliverables November 1st and would be working with Han Yoon. Dona explained that since providers have recently been hired, FHS wants to fairly assign new members and create a patient center medical home for the patients.
- The 2-year grant for Saturday clinic is still pending, but if approved, it would provide FHS \$500K a year, allowing the Vallejo Clinic to operate one (1) Saturday a month to focus on quality metrics. Dona mentioned that it will also fund the staffing needed to operate on Saturdays.
- There were no questions from the Board.

External News:

- Dona reported that consulting company, Wipfli, recently toured the FHS clinics and reviewed financial data, with the goal of offering rate setting advice and guidance. She explained that adding specialties to the clinics would trigger the rate setting activities. Once the consulting report is received, it will provide recommendations on which kinds of specialties that FHS can pursue. Specialties such as Dermatology and Ophthalmology would be presented to the Board for review and approval.
- Jerry Huber added that Wipfli was referred to FHS by PHC. He expected that the recommendations would be provided to the CHB Executive Committee Board and H&SS at the end of October.
- Dr. Bela Matyas explained how the insurance pays FHS for the services provided. He stated that the current rate paid to the clinics is outdated and may not pay as much as it costs to provide care to the patient(s). Rate setting would look at the entire cost of the service, so that the provider can be paid adequately. Bringing in specialties to the clinic would be a "triggering event" that would justify the restructure of the rate. Dr. Matyas stated that if FHS qualifies for the rate setting by next fiscal year, it will bring more revenue to the clinics.
- Ruth Forney asked who determines the rate and Tracee Stacy asked if the rates would be the same for all clinics. Dr. Matyas clarified that the DHCS sets the rate, and the four (4) clinics expend different amounts, so it would not be the same rate. The goal is to decide the least expensive option that creates the most revenue. Dona added that FHS' percentage of homeless population may result in additional compensation.
- Dr. Matyas also acknowledged the Board for previously approving Uber Health transportation for FHS patients, stating that it's been a heavily utilized service.
- ii) Strategic Plan Report Update Dona Weissenfels
 - Dona presented "CHB Strategic Plan Review 2024" Power Point presentation (not included in the Agenda Packet).
 - Dona explained that the Strategic Plan was created a year and a half prior. She stated that an assessment was made collectively, and six (6) goals were established by the Board Members. After providing several monthly updates at the CHB Meetings, Dona confirmed that she would focus on one goal for discussion, at each CHB Meeting. And after all goals were covered, the Board will identify a date to make any changes to those goals.
 - Dona presented the Power Point for Goal 1: Enhance the Experience of FHS Patients and Staff. The 1st objective was to create and implement three (3) satisfaction surveys regarding Call Center services by May 31, 2024, improving satisfaction 10% by June 30, 2026. She reported that 25% of surveys have been completed, due to the Epic transition, change in Leadership and resources. Dona expects completion and rollout in 2025.



- The 2nd objective was Equity and included the following sub-categories: develop strategies using QI techniques, training, resources, and modules by July 2023 (25% completion); implement three (3) strategies on health equity development using PDSA cycles (25% completion); improve Wi-Fi access to enhance patient and staff experience at all sites, including FHS rural areas by June 30, 2024 (not started); increase new provider retention by creating mentorship program by June 30, 2024 (10%).
- Tracee Stacy and Ruth Forney inquired about Wi-Fi availability and funding. Dr. Matyas provided clarification that funds were for rural County residents to provide broadband access, as well as provide devices and service to seniors, however, there is a plan to improve Wi-Fi access in all County buildings.

8) Business Governance

- a) Review and consider approval of the Quarterly Financial Report Nina Delmendo
 - i) Action Item: The Board will consider approval of the Quarterly Financial Report.

Discussion:

• None.

Motion:	To approve the Quarterly Financial Report.
---------	--

Motion by: Tracee Stacy and seconded by Seema Mirza.

- Ayes: Michael Brown, Marbeya Ellis, Ruth Forney, Charla Griffith, Gerald Hase, Anthony Lofton, Seema Mirza, Don O' Conner, Annabelle Sanchez, Tracee Stacy, Sandra Whaley, Brandon Wirth.
- Nays: None.
- Abstain: None.

Motion carried.

- b) Review and consider approval of the Quarterly Quality Improvement Report Han Yoon.
 - i) **Action Item**: The Board will consider approval of the Quarterly Quality Improvement Report.

Discussion:

- None.
- Motion: To approve the Quarterly Quality Improvement Report.
- Motion by: Sandra Whaley and seconded by Anthony Lofton.
- Ayes: Michael Brown, Marbeya Ellis, Ruth Forney, Charla Griffith, Gerald Hase, Anthony Lofton, Seema Mirza, Don O' Conner, Annabelle Sanchez, Tracee Stacy, Sandra Whaley, Brandon Wirth.



Nays: None.

Abstain: None.

Motion carried.

- 9) Discussion
 - a) Board development, assessment, on-boarding training Dona Weissenfels
 - Dona Weissenfels reported that the Board-Approved "Health Center Boards: Navigating Legal Considerations" online training series, offered by Feldesman Training Solutions, had not yet been purchased because the company must be added to the County as a verified vendor. Nina did confirm that Feldsman Training Solutions needs to be registered as a Vendor before a Purchase Authorization can be created to purchase the modules.
 - Dona acknowledged that new Board Member training has not been sufficient and was looking for ideas or volunteers from the Board. Tracee Stacy volunteered Ruth Forney because of her years of experience and knowledge. Brandon Wirth mentioned the Board Member Assessment surveys included onboarding as a category. Although it had scored fairly, it was not accurate. He acknowledged that board development is important, along with having a better onboarding process. Brandon explained that the Board would have to decide if there should be a formal or informal process, have an assigned committee, as well as dedicating time to review the binder and Bylaws with new Members. Tracee asked how ideas can be discussed in further detail, suggesting via email. Kelly Welsh clarified that individual Board Members can email ideas to the Chair or Dona, but cannot be sent to the entire Board, as a group.
 - Ruth stated that when she was Chair, she would be responsible for providing an introduction training to new Board Members. Dona mentioned that many Federally Qualified Health Centers (FQHC) have committees for varied purposes, so it can be defined to fit this Boards' needs.
 - Dr. Bela Matyas asked the newer Board Members how they would like their orientation to look. Annabelle Sanchez, Marbeya Ellis, Seema Mirza, and Charla Griffith commented that a mentorship program would be helpful, as well as a history of the Board would help understand the overall goals, objectives, expectations so that they can understand their role, like a New Hire Orientation and separate from the monthly CHB meeting.

10) Board Member Comments

- Ruth Forney acknowledged Jerry Huber's retirement and she stated how much he accomplished. Jerry mentioned that the County has a great team in FHS and the Board but will face budget challenges for the next few years.
- Tracee Stacy reported that as of September 20th, 20 people died of overdose and/or suicide. She inquired about the process to assess patients in the clinics and expressed the urgency to act and track. Dona Weissenfels assured the Board that FHS has a high-level of sensitivity to the patient population. She provided an example of a substance abuse patient in the clinic and explained how it was handled with care. Jerry acknowledged that the integrated health care is an issue in all health care, not just in FHS. He stated that it starts with each patient and the continuum of care is process that needs to improve. Dr. Bela Matyas mentioned that all health centers are lacking physicians, not just mental health clinicians. He added that although the State is solving homelessness by providing housing, it doesn't solve the access to care for the homeless population.
- Brandon Wirth extended congratulations to Jerry Huber and reminded the Board about Board Nominations for next months CHB meeting.



11) Adjourn: To the Community Healthcare Board Meeting of:

DATE:	November 20, 2024
TIME:	12:00 PM — 2:00 PM
Location:	Multi-Purpose Room
	2101 Courage Drive
	Fairfield, CA 94533

The Meeting was adjourned at 1:52 PM.

Handouts in the Agenda Packet:

- CHB September 18, 2024, draft Meeting Minutes
- Clinic Operations Report FHS Staffing Update October 16, 2024
- Clinic Operations Report FHS Credentialing, Provider Enrollment and Sanctioning Screening Activities Status Report – October 2024
- Clinic Operations Report Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) Grant Updates October 16, 2024
- Clinic Operations Report Grievance Reports, April-December 2023 & January– September 2024" and Grievance Category Definitions
- Clinic Operations Report FHS Compliance Incident Report Tracking, September 1- September 30, 2024
- Clinic Operations Report Finance September 2024 Solano County Expenditure and Revenue Report FHS – September 2024
- Clinic Operations Report Revenue Cycle Reports September 2024
- Clinic Operations Report Family Health Services Referrals Time Period September 2024
- Clinic Operations Report Primary Care Provider Improvement Program (PCP QIP), Solano County, H&SS, FHS As of October 1, 2024
- Clinic Operations Report FHS Quality Assurance/Quality Improvement (QA/QI) Committee Meeting Minutes – September 13, 2024
- CHB Strategic Plan Review 2024 Power Point (presented at the meeting)